
 

 
 
 

 

Agenda 
Licensing Sub Committee 1 
 

Friday, 24 June 2022 at 10.00 am 
At Council Chamber - Sandwell Council House, Oldbury 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as 

required by Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 

Regulations 2012. 
 

 
1   Apologies for Absence 

 
Members to declare any interests in matters to be 
discussed at the meeting. 
 

 

2   Declarations of Interest 
 
Members to declare any interests in matters to be 
discussed at the meeting. 
 

 

3   Application to Review a Premises Licence, The 
Regis, 152 Reddal Hill Road, Cradley Heath, 
B64 5JJ 
 
To consider the application to Review a Premises 
Licence, The Regis, 152 Reddal Hill Road, 
Cradley Heath, B64 5JJ. 
 

5 - 102 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

Kim Bromley-Derry CBE DL 
Managing Director Commissioner 
Sandwell Council House 
Freeth Street 
Oldbury 
West Midlands 
 
Distribution 
Councillor Allen (Chair) 
Councillors Fenton and Z Hussain 
 
Contact: democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk 
 

Page 2

mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk


 

Information about meetings in Sandwell 
 

 
 

If you are attending the meeting and require assistance to 
access the venue, please contact Democratic Services 
(democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk). 
 

 
 

If the fire alarm sounds, please follow the instructions of the 
officers present and leave the building by the nearest exit. 
 

 
 

Only people invited to speak at a meeting may do so.  
Everyone at the meeting is expected to be respectful and listen 
to the discussion. 

 
 

Agendas with reports with exempt information should be 
treated as private and confidential.  It is your responsibility to 
ensure that any such reports are kept secure.  After the 
meeting confidential papers should be disposed of in a secure 
way. 
 

 
 

This meeting may be recorded and broadcast on the Internet.  
If this is the case, it will be confirmed at the meeting and 
further information will be provided.  
 
 

 
 

You are allowed to use devices for the purposes of recording 
or reporting during the public session of the meeting.  When 
using your devices they must not disrupt the meeting – please 
ensure they are set to silent. 
 

 
 

Members who cannot attend the meeting should submit 
apologies by contacting Democratic Services 
(democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk) 
 

 

All agenda, reports, minutes for Sandwell Council’s meetings, 
councillor details and more are available from our website 

Page 3

mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk
https://sandwell.moderngov.co.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Agenda Item […] 

 
 

Report to Licensing Sub Committee [ ] 
 
 

24th June 2022 
 

Subject: Application to review a Premises Licence known 
as The Regis, situated at, 152 Reddal Hill Road, 
Cradley Heath, B64 5JJ 
 

Director: Director – Borough Economy – Alice Davey 

Contact Officer: Geeta Bangerh (Licensing Officer) 
licensing_team@sandwell.gov.uk 
 

 
 Recommendations 
 

1 The Sandwell Council Licensing Sub Committee are here to consider an 

application to review the Premises Licence submitted by Environmental 

Health at Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council under Section 51/52 of 

the Licensing Act 2003. In respect of premises known as The Regis, 

situated at 152 Reddal Hill Road, Cradley Heath, B64 5JJ. 

 
2.  Each application must be considered on its merits taking into account, 

the evidence presented at the hearing, and the Guidance issued under 
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  The options that can be considered once evidence has been 
heard are detailed at section 6. 

 
1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

  

1.1  To advise members of an application made under section 51/52 of the 

Licensing Act 2003 to review a Premises Licence in respect of premises 

known as The Regis, situated at 152 Reddal Hill Road, Cradley Heath, 

B64 5JJ. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

 
1.2 The Licensing Sub Committee is required to consider this application 

and take such steps as it considers appropriate and proportionate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
2 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan? 
 

 

A strong and inclusive economy 
Investing in people and jobs.  Licensed premises provide 
employment in the Borough and help to support the 
Borough’s economy. 
 
It is the Authority’s aim to offer a wide choice of high quality 
and well managed entertainment and cultural venues within 
a safe, orderly and attractive environment; valued by those 
who live here, work here and come to visit.  We want to 
ensure that businesses operate responsibly and safely so 
that our residents live in decent neighbourhoods and have a 
good quality of life. 

 
3 Context and Key Issues 

 
3.1 Under the Licensing Act 2003, a responsible authority or any other 

person may make representations in respect of the application which 
must be relevant to one or more of the four licensing objectives, namely: 

 
o The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
o Public Safety 
o The Prevention of Public Nuisance 
o The Protection of Children from Harm 

 
4  CURRENT POSITION  

 

4.1 An application for a review of the premises licence was made by 

Environmental Health at Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council on 11th 

May 2022. 

 

4.2 The application was made on the grounds of Prevention of Public 
Nuisance due to Environmental Health receiving complaints since 21 
January 2022, relating to noise nuisance caused by musical 
entertainment. A noise Abatement Notice under Section 80 of the 

Page 6



 

Environmental Protection Act 1990 was served. The noise abatement 
notice had been contravened and complaints have continued. 
 

4.3 A copy of the application pack is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

4.4 The location and proximity to neighbouring premises can be seen on the 
location map provided which is attached at Appendix 3. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
4.5 The licence was granted 10th November 2001. 

 
4.6 The Premises licence holder is Mr Gareth Collins, who has held the 

licence since 19th January 2022.  Mr David Mundon is the Designated 
Premises Supervisor since 21st December 2021. 
 

4.7 The hours permitted for licensable activities are 09:00 – 01:30 Monday 
to Sunday. 
 

4.8 The hours the premises are open to the public are 09:00 – 01:30 
Monday to Sunday. 

 
4.9 On New Year’s Eve these hours may be extended from the end of 

licensed hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of licensed hours on New 

Year’s Day. 

 

4.10 Where this licence permits licensable activities after 01:00, on the day on 

which British Summer Time begins.  The licensed hours are extended at 

the end of licensed hours by one hour on that day. 

 

4.11 A copy of the premises licence is attached at Appendix 2. 
 
4.12 A location map of the premises is attached at Appendix 3. 
 
5 Consultation (customers and other stakeholders) 

 
5.1 The Licensing Team displayed a public notice on or near the premises 

outlining the application and inviting comments/representations to be 
sent to the Licensing Authority, detailing a closing date for these to be 

Page 7



 

received.  The last date being 8th June 2022. Details of the application 
were also published on the Council’s website. 

 
 
6 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  

 

The options available to the Licensing Sub-Committee having considered all 
the relevant information are as follows: 

 
6.1 To modify the conditions of the licence. 

 
6.2 To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence. 

 
6.3 To remove the designated premises supervisor. 
 
6.4 To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months. 

 
6.7 To revoke the licence. 

 
6.8 Additional conditions or restrictions to licensable activities and/or times 

should only be imposed if considered appropriate for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives.  If other law already places certain statutory 
responsibilities on a premise, it would not be appropriate to impose 
similar duties. 

 

6.9 Conditions may be altered or omitted, or any new condition added. 
 

6.10 Members of the Sub Committee should be advised that the applicant, or 
any other person who made relevant representations in relation to the 
application, may appeal against the decision made to the Magistrates’ 
Court within 21 days of the date on which they were notified. 

 
 
7 Implications 
 

Resources: There are no direct strategic resource implications 
associated with this application. 
 
In respect of premises licence applications, we do not 
foresee any issues in respect of sustainability of 
proposals. 

Page 8



 

 

Legal and 
Governance: 

Members of the Licensing Sub Committee when 
making their decision on the application must take into 
account the four licensing objectives, the Guidance 
issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
and the Council’s own Statement of Licensing Policy.  
The applicant and those who have made relevant 
representations have the right to appeal the decision 
made by the Licensing Sub Committee to the 
Magistrates Court, so the Committee are asked to 
give reasons for their decision wherever possible. 
 
Members of the Sub-Committee should not allow 
themselves to predetermine the application or to be 
prejudiced in favour or opposed to the applicant 
and/or the licence holder and shall only determine the 
application having had an opportunity to consider all 
relevant facts. 

Risk: This is an Environmental Health Review triggered by 
an undermining of the Public Health Licensing 
Objective. 
 

Equality: The Equality Act 2010 legally protects people from 
discrimination in the workplace and in wider society. 
 
The operators of this premises are responsible for 
complying with all relevant legislation. 

Health and 
Wellbeing: 

This is not applicable to applications for premises 
licences submitted under the Licensing Act 2003. 

Social Value This is not applicable to applications for premises 
licences submitted under the Licensing Act 2003. 

 
 
8 Appendices 
 

• Appendix 1 – Review Application 

• Appendix 2 – Premises Licence 

• Appendix 3 – Location Plan 

• Appendix 4 – EH Team Findings 

• Appendix 4.1 – EH Appendix 16 

• Appendix 4.2 – EH Appendix 18 

Page 9



 

 

• Appendix 4.3 – EH Marked Plan 

• Appendix 5 – Document from Applicant 

• Appendix 6 – Representations 
 
9 Background Papers 
 

• Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council Licensing Policy 

• Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

• The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 
 

Page 10



 

 
Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises 

certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 
 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 
 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the 
form. 
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. 
In all cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black 
ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  
 
I Sharan Dadwal on behalf of Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council. 
  (Insert name of applicant) 
apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for 
the review of a club premises certificate under section 87 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as 
applicable) 
 
Part 1 – Premises or club premises details   
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference 
or description 
 
The Regis (The Regis Events Ltd) 
152 Reddal Hill Road  
Cradley Heath  
B64 5JJ 
Post town    
                    Cradley Heath, West   
Midlands 

Post code (if known)   
B64 5JJ 

 
Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises 
certificate (if known) 
 
Mr Gareth Collins 
 
Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)  
 
05/008555/LAPREM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 

Part 2 - Applicant details  
 
I am 
 

 
Please tick  
yes 

 
1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible  
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)  
or (B) below) 

  

 

 
2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)  
 
3) a member of the club to which this application relates  
(please complete (A) below) 

    

 
 
(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 
 
Please tick  yes 
 
Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other 

title 
      

 (for example, Rev) 
 
Surname  First names 
             

  Please tick  yes 
I am 18 years old or over 
 

 
 
Current 
postal  
address if  
different 
from 
premises 
address 

      

 Post town       Post Code       

 Daytime contact telephone number       
 E-mail address 
(optional)  

      

 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 
 
Name and address 
      

Telephone number (if any) 
      
E-mail address (optional)  
      
 

Page 13



 

 
 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 
 
 Name and address 
 
Sharan Dadwal – Environmental Health Officer (Citizen & Consumer 
Protection) 
Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council 
P.O. Box 2374, Sandwell Council House 
Oldbury, West Midlands, B69 3DE 

Telephone number (if any) 
07876 478859 
E-mail address (optional)  
sharan dadwal@sandwell.gov.uk                        
  
 
 
This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 
 
 
 
 Please tick one or more 

boxes  
1) the prevention of crime and disorder  
2) public safety  
3) the prevention of public nuisance  
4) the protection of children from harm  
 
 

Page 14



 

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2) 
 
This application is being made because we have grounds to believe that the 
licence holder is not promoting, nor being able to uphold the following 
licensing objective: 
 

• Prevention of Public Nuisance; 
 
As the licence holder and designated premises supervisor Mr Collins is 
responsible for the day to day management of The Regis. Furthermore, 
irrespective of the licensing regime, the license holder must be able to uphold 
all the licensing objectives. 
 
In summary, the premises have been subject to ongoing noise complaints 
since 21 January 2022 and the license holder, Mr Gareth Collins has although 
provided assurance, failed to demonstrate any intention of working towards 
resolving the matter. 
 
A public nuisance is something which is unreasonable and causes substantial 
interference in the use and enjoyment of a person's property. It is much more 
than just an annoyance or being aware of something. Therefore, if in close 
proximity to residential properties, pubs and clubs such as The Regis, should 
have strict noise control procedures in place so as not to cause such 
nuisances.  
 
Ever since the very first complaint arose against The Regis, further complaints 
continue to be received by our Department every single week, following 
weekend entertainment at the venue. Our Department has received 
complaints directly from residents and complaints through local Councillors. 
Evidence received by our Department so far would suggest that Mr Collins 
has failed to comply with conditions on his premises licence intended to 
further the licensing objective relating to ‘The prevention of public nuisance’.  
 
Mr Collins has also been served with a noise Abatement Notice under Section 
80 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 as the music emanating from his 
premises constitutes a Statutory Nuisance. Despite being advised repeatedly 
to control the nuisance, Mr Collins has demonstrated no acts of rectifying the 
situation and as a result, provides no confidence in doing so.  
 
Since serving the Notice, further complaints and video footage, revealing 
noise nuisance from The Regis and parking issues, have been received by 
our Department from nearby residents. Therefore, these allegations of 
contraventions of the noise abatement notice are currently being investigated 
by Officers to determine appropriate enforcement action. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 

Please provide as much information as possible to support the 
application (please read guidance note 3) 
 
The Regis has been subject to many complaints from nearby residents 
relating to noise nuisance caused by musical entertainment held there, and 
disorderly parking issues including complaints made via three separate 
Councillors. This matter has been under investigation since January 2022. 
Since receipt of these complaints, several conversations, including a face to 
face meeting have taken place with Mr Collins who has been offered advice 
both in writing and verbally. Also, in attendance at the face to face meeting 
were two Licencing Enforcement Officers (Andrew Price and Paul Franks) 
from Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council and a Licencing Enforcement 
Police Officer (Nicola Stansbie). During the meeting, it was instantly 
recognised that work was required to effectively soundproof the fabric of the 
building in order to ensure the noise is retained within the building and so not 
to cause a nuisance. Alternative action could also be taken to reduce the 
volume levels of the entertainment. A follow up letter was sent to Mr Collins 
detailing the agreed steps to be taken, dated 4 February 2022 (appendix 2).  
 
Since the complaints were received, Mr Collins has received advice and 
guidance when required with the aim of enabling him to be able to uphold the 
licensing objective.  
 
Mr Collins has been advised that his premises is subject to a noise related 
complaint and that noise nuisance monitoring may take place. A letter dated 
11 February 2022 (appendix 3) advises Mr Collins that he has a statutory duty 
to control excess noise from the premises and that failure to do so could result 
in formal action being taken against him. 
 
As a follow-up to the letter sent on 11 February 2022, on 16 February 2022, 
two Environmental Health Officers from Citizen & Consumer Protection 
installed noise monitoring equipment in a nearby complainant’s house in order 
to determine if there was evidence of statutory nuisance. The equipment was 
then collected on 8 March 2022 (see appendix 4 & 9). This data was then 
analysed (see appendix 10). Two examples of dB data analysis were selected 
at random: 
 

• Example 1: Sat 19.02.22, 23:00 (60) dB (The Regis open) 
             Sun 20.02.22, 04:00 (30) dB (The Regis closed) 

• Example 2: Sat 05.02.22, 23:00 (68) dBa (The Regis open) 
             Sun 06.02.22, 04:00 (38) dBa (The Regis closed) 
 
(It can be seen from the above examples in both cases that the difference in 
dB noise levels between when The Regis was open and when it was closed 
was significant) 
 
Upon analysing this data and considering previous evidence it was 
established that a statutory noise nuisance was being caused by the premises 
for nearby local residents (see appendix 15).  
 

Page 16



 

In addition, two Environmental Health Officers undertook monitoring outside 
the premises and recorded personal observations on 19 February 2022 (see 
appendix 5 & 6) and 26 February 2022 (see appendix 7 & 8).  
 
We had substantiated a Statutory Nuisance (in accordance with the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990, Sections 79 and 80) and so a 12-day 
deferral letter, dated 8 April 2022 was sent - one to Gareth Collins personally 
and one to the Company Secretary at Regis Events Ltd. It warned Mr Collins 
that unless the nuisance was abated, or at least plans put in place to do so, it 
is our intention to serve an Abatement Notice (under Section 80 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990) after the 12-day period (see appendix 11). 
 
In response to this deferral letter, dated 8 April 2022, we received an email on 
behalf of Mr Collins from Mr James Jewry, an Acoustic Consultant working on 
behalf of Gareth Collins and Regis Events Ltd on 11 April 2022. Mr Jewry had 
several queries regarding the type of equipment we use and the criteria we 
follow. Although some of the queries were answered, some were not as he 
was requesting confidential information. Furthermore, Mr Jewry did not 
suggest any ways in which they intended to resolve the issues. Nor did I hear 
from him again (see appendix 12). During this period further complaints had 
been received from the complainants in relation to nuisance caused by the 
noise. 
 
On 20 April 2022 the Abatement Notice was served with a covering letter to 
Gareth Collins at The Regis, 152 Reddal Hill Rd, Cradley Heath B64 5JJ. One 
was served to Gareth Collins personally and one to the Company Secretary at 
Regis Events Ltd. Accompanying Environmental Health Officer, Sharan 
Dadwal were: Paul Franks and Andy Price (Licensing Enforcement Officers – 
Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council) and Police Officers – Andrew 
Cleaver & Claire Van Luinen (see appendix 13). Since serving the Notice, 
further complaints have been received from the complainants in relation to 
nuisance caused by the noise and disorderly parking issues. 
 
On 26 April, Mr Collins emailed our Department asking how to appeal the 
Abatement Notice. He was directed towards the appeal instructions and 
advised to seek legal advice (see appendix 14). 
 
In addition to the above information, below is a record of all the complainant’s 
logs with the Environmental Health Department. It shows when the 
complainant’s contacted the Council (via Environmental Health Officer, 
Sharan Dadwal) and what they submitted – the information can be obtained 
upon request. 
 
Complainant 1 (SR: 207704) 
21.01.22 Complaint received 
25.01.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
28.01.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to update him following phone 

conversation with Mr Collins (from 27.01.22) 
07.02.22 Phone call from C with further noise complaints 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion (not returned) 

Page 17



 

10.02.22 Phone call from C with further noise complaints 
 
Complainant 2 (SR: 207764)  
24.01.22 Complaint received 
25.01.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
28.01.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to update him following phone 

conversation with Mr Collins (from 27.01.22) 
31.01.22 Phone call from C with further noise complaints 
04.02.22 Phone call from C with further noise complaints 
07.02.22 Phone call from C with further noise complaints and said he had 

to contact the police over the weekend due to guests leaving 
The Regis at closing time – anti-social behaviour 

08.02.22 Phone call from C with further noise complaints 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion 
15.02.22 Phone call from C to discuss noise issues from The Regis 
23.02.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan 

Dadwal 
24.02.22 Message from C asking for any updates 
10.03.22 Log of anti-social behaviour from The Regis guests emailed to 

Sharan Dadwal 
14.03.22 Further Log of anti-social behaviour from The Regis guests 

emailed to Sharan Dadwal 
14.03.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan 

Dadwal 
15.03.22 Phone call from C asking for update and discussing issues 

further 
24.03.22 Message from C asking when the Abatement Notice will be 

served 
27.03.22 Message from C complaining about the noise issues this 

weekend  
04.04.22 Message sent to Sharan Dadwal about noise disturbance from 

weekend 
19.04.22 Noise monitoring form sent through to Sharan Dadwal 
25.04.22 Noise monitoring form sent through to Sharan Dadwal 
02.05.22 Noise monitoring form sent through to Sharan Dadwal 
 
Complainant 3 (SR: 207782) 
24.01.22 Complaint received 
25.01.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
26.01.22 C emailed through to Sharan Dadwal images of sound system, 

future events and video footage of event complained about 
28.01.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to update him following phone 

conversation with Mr Collins (from 27.01.22) 
31.01.22 C phoned Sharan Dadwal to complain about anti-social 

behaviour of Regis guests and inconsiderate parking 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion 
16.02.22 Visited C’s home to install NME with Helen Brimelow 
19.02.22 C sent footage to Sharan Dadwal of ASB from The Regis guests 
08.03.22 Visited C’s home to collect NME with Helen Brimelow 
12.03.22 Image sent to Sharan Dadwal showing inconsiderate care 

Page 18



 

parking 
14.03.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan 

Dadwal 
19.03.22 Image sent to Sharan Dadwal of future events at The Regis 
21.03.22 Image sent to Sharan Dadwal showing advertisement of sporting 

match event 
28.03.22 Image sent to Sharan Dadwal showing event for 25.06.22 from 

1pm-1am 
28.03.22 Image sent to Sharan Dadwal showing further parking issues 
04.04.22 Footage sent to Sharan Dadwal showing disturbances from 

02/03 April 2022 
03.05.22 Footage sent to Sharan Dadwal of weekend 30 April 2022/01 

May 2022 – loud music and parking issues 
 
 
Complainant 4 (SR: 208142) 
31.01.22 Complaint received 
01.02.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
07.02.22 C phoned Sharan Dadwal to complain about the noise from The 

Regis 
09.02.22 C phoned Sharan Dadwal to discuss noise issue from The Regis 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion 
11.02.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan 

Dadwal 
23.02.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan 

Dadwal 
25.02.22 C phoned Sharan Dadwal to complain about noise and anti-

social behaviour 
28.02.22 C phoned Sharan Dadwal to complain about noise and anti-

social behaviour of Regis guests  
01.03.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan 

Dadwal 
07.03.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan 

Dadwal 
14.03.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan 

Dadwal 
26.04.22 Noise monitoring form sent through to Sharan Dadwal 
 
Complainant 5 (SR: 208250) 
01.02.22 Complaint received 
02.02.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion 
23.02.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan 

Dadwal 
11.03.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan 

Dadwal 
 
Complainant 6 (SR: 208388)   
03.02.22 Complaint received 
10.02.22 Sharan Dadwal emailed Cllr response to Shane (no Constituent 

Page 19



 

response as C was anonymous) 
 
Complainant 7 (SR: 208419)  
03.02.22 Complaint received 
04.02.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion 
10.02.22 Sharan Dadwal emailed Cllr and Constituent response to Shane 
28.02.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan 

Dadwal 
07.04.22 Email from C to Sharan Dadwal asking for update  
30.04.22 Email from C to Sharan Dadwal complaining about weekend 30 

April 2022 – noise and Caribbean Kitchen vehicle blocked his 
driveway – image provided. 

 
Complainant 8 (SR: 208436)  
03.02.22 Complaint received 
04.02.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion 
10.02.22 Sharan Dadwal emailed Cllr and Constituent response to Shane 
28.02.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan 

Dadwal 
07.04.22 Email from C to Sharan Dadwal asking for update 
30.04.22 Email from C to Sharan Dadwal complaining about weekend 30 

April 2022 – noise and Caribbean Kitchen vehicle blocked his 
driveway – image provided. 

 
Complainant 9 (SR: 208504) 
04.02.22 Complaint received 
09.02.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion 
23.02.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan 

Dadwal 
14.03.22 C emailed Sharan Dadwal footage of ASB from alleged The 

Regis guests 
14.03.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan 

Dadwal 
 
Complainant 10 (SR: 210742) 
16.03.22 Complaint received 
18.03.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
  (C said he did not want to get involved in anything further) 

Page 20



 

                                                                                                                                  
Please tick  yes 
Have you made an application for review relating to the 
premises before 

 

 
 
If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year 

                
 

 

 
 
If you have made representations before relating to the premises please 
state what they were and when you made them 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



Page 22



 

MIDLANDS 
Telephone number (if any) 07876 478859 
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address 
your e-mail address (optional)  sharan dadwal@sandwell.gov.uk  
 
Notes for Guidance  
 

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue 
authority and other statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in 
the local area. 

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing 
objectives. 

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of 
problems which are included in the grounds for review if available. 

4. The application form must be signed. 
5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their 

behalf provided that they have actual authority to do so. 
6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about 

this application. 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 8 

 

Appendix 2 
 

 

 

 
PREMISES LICENCE - LICENSING ACT 2003 

 
PART A – RE-ISSUE 12 MAY 2022 

 

 

DATE OF GRANT 10 November 2005  PREMISES LICENCE NUMBER: 05/008555/LAPREM 

 
Part 1 – Premises details 

 

Postal address of premises 

The Regis  
Redall Hill Road 
Cradley Heath 
B64 5JJ 

Telephone Number 01384 569 019 

  

Name of premises licence holder Mr Gareth Collins 

Address 

73 Bridgenorth Road 
Wollaston 
Stourbridge 
DY8 3PZ 

Telephone number - 

Email address caribbeankitchenltd@gmail.com 

Registered number of holder  
(e.g. Company/Charity) 

- 

  

Name of Designated Premises Supervisor David John Mundon 

Personal Licence Number DY/50/0158 

Issuing Authority Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council 

  

Where the licence is time limited the dates - 

  

State whether access to the premises by 
children is restricted or prohibited 

- 

Page 25



Page 2 of 8 

 

 

Part 2  

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES 

Licensable activities 
authorised by the licence 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

  

Plays 
 
Indoor Sporting Events 
 
Boxing or Wrestling 
 
Live music 
 
Recorded music 
 
Performances of dance 
 
Provision of facilities for making 
music 
 
Provision of facilities for dancing 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 
Supply of alcohol 
 
 

0900 – 0130 Monday to Sunday  
 
On New Years eve these hours may be extended from the end of 
licensed hours on New Years Eve to the start of licensed hours on New 
Years Day. 

Opening hours of the premises 

 
0900 – 0130 Monday to Sunday  
 
On New Years eve these hours may be extended from the end of 
licensed hours on New Years Eve to the start of licensed hours on New 
Years Day. 
 

All above licensed activities  

Where this licence permits licensable activities after 0100, on the day 
on which British Summer Time begins.  The licensed hours are 
extended at the end of licensed hours by one hour on that day. 

 

 
 

General Licensing Team 
Regulated Services, Borough Economy 
Sandwell Council House, PO Box 2374 

Oldbury, B69 3DE 
 

Page 26



Page 3 of 8 

 

 

Annex 1 
 

Mandatory Conditions 
 

Section 19 Licensing Act 2003 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the licence (a) at a time when there is no designated 
premises supervisor (DPS) in respect of the licence, or (b) at a time when the DPS does not hold a 
personal licence or that licence is suspended 

 
2. Every supply of alcohol under the licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a 
personal licence 

 

3. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or 

participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.  

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, 

or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of 

alcohol for consumption on the premises—  

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, 

individuals to—  

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the 

premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or 

supply alcohol), or  

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);  

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to 

the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant 

risk of undermining a licensing objective;  

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the 

purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a 

significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;  

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity 

of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social 

behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner;  

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other 

person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).  

 

4.   The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers 

where it is reasonably available.  

 

5.  (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the 

supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.  

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of 

age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 

alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—  

(a) a holographic mark, or  Page 27



Page 4 of 8 

 

(b) an ultraviolet feature.  

 

6.  The responsible person must ensure that—  

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 

premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready 

for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following 

measures—  

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and  

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;  

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is 

available to customers on the premises; and  

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to 

be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.”  

 

These conditions apply to all relevant premises licences and all relevant club premises certificates 

only authorising consumption of alcohol off the premises 

 

1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification 

policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the 

supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.  

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of 

age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 

alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—  

(a)a holographic mark, or  

(b)an ultraviolet feature.  

 
 

This applies to all premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises.  
 

7.  A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

 
     For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1— 

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(a); 
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula— 

P = D + (D x V) 
where— 

(i)  P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on 
the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value 
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises 
licence— 

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a 
licence; 

Page 28



Page 5 of 8 

 

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club 
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity 
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 
1994(a). 

 
     Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph)  

not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the 
price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
     (1)  Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a 

day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”) 
as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol 
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 29



Page 6 of 8 

 

 

Annex 2 
 

 
Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

 
Conditions Converted from Public Entertainment Licence  
 
Maximum occupancy – 500 persons 
 
Licensee statement of operating schedule. 
 
General 
 
The Premises Licence holder shall comply with the local authority guidelines for licensing 
objectives. all events are supervised by competent staff at all times. 
 
The prevention of crime and disorder 
 
Work within the local authority guidelines and policies regarding crime and disorder, also 
crime prevention meetings take place at Regis with local police once per month on average. 
 
Public Safety 
 
Security and fire safety are of paramount importance to us, we comply with Local Authority 
guidelines.   
 
The Prevention of public nuisance 
 
Staff monitors noise levels and behaviour of guests using the premises when leaving and 
during functions. 
 
The Protection of children from harm 
 
The Premises licence holder shall ensure children are only permitted with an adult who is 
responsible for them.  
 
Some entertainment is advertised for over 18s only, on these evenings only person over 18 
are allowed entrance.  Other times children are only allowed entrance accompanied at all 
times with a parent or guardian. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



Page 7 of 8 

 

 

Annex 3 
 
 

Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority  
 

NONE 
 

Page 31



Page 8 of 8 

 

Annex 4 
 

 

Plans 
 

The plan attached to this licence is held by Sandwell MBC 
 

 
 

 

Page 32



Appendix 3 – Location Plan 

The Regis, 152 Reddal Hill Road, Cradley Heath, B64 5JJ 

 

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



THE REGIS – Chronological Notes 

 
27.01.22 Sharan Dadwal made a phone call to The Regis following a few complaints received by this 

department. Spoke with Gareth Collins advising him of complaints and establishing more 
about the situation. 

  (see case 207704, item 5) 
04.02.22 Visit to The Regis:  

• Sharan Dadwal 
• Nicola Stansbie (Police Licensing Officer) 
• Andrew Price & Paul Franks (Licensing Enforcement Officers - SMBC) 
Where we met with: 
• Claire Shayle (Manager – The Regis) 
• Gareth Collins (Manager – The Regis)  
• Jay Webley (Sound System Manager – The Regis) 
 
We spoke to Claire, Gareth and Jay about the noise complaints made and discussed ways in 
which the problem can be managed. They agreed to put in steps control methods. 

(see Appendix 1) 
04.02.22 Letter sent to The Regis stating agreed action plan following visit. 

 (see Appendix 2) 
11.02.22 Letter sent to The Regis informing them of our intention to gather evidence with a view to 

take enforcement action 
(see Appendix 3) 

16.02.22 Sharan Dadwal and Helen Brimelow visited  (complainant) home a  
to install NME. 

 (see Appendix 4) 
19.02.22 Sharan Dadwal and Surveen Chahal visited the area of The Regis and parked outside on 

Highland Road (Sharan Dadwal) and Hickman’s Avenue (Surveen Chahal) to make 
observations regarding the noise complaints from The Regis.   

(see Appendix 5 & 6) 
26.02.22 Sharan Dadwal and Surveen Chahal visited the area of The Regis and parked outside on 

Highland Road (Sharan Dadwal) and Hickman’s Avenue (Surveen Chahal) to make 
observations regarding the noise complaints from The Regis.   

(see Appendix 7 & 8) 
08.03.22 Sharan Dadwal and Helen Brimelow visited  (complainant) home a  

to collect NME. 
 (see Appendix 7) 

(see Appendix 8) 
08.04.22 Sharan Dadwal sent 12-day deferral letter – one to Gareth Collins personally and one to the 

Company Secretary at Regis Events Ltd. Sent by recorded delivery and emailed. Cc’d to 
Shane Middleton, Nicola Stansbie, Paul Franks and Andy Price. 

(see Appendix 11) 

Page 35



08.04.22 Sharan Dadwal contacted  – 
Landlord of The Regis. Spoke with  who originally dealt with the lease. I 
spoke with about the current situation and he said he will also contact Gareth as he is 
not happy with this. 

 
11.04.22 Sharan Dadwal - attended West Bromwich Police Station where I had a meeting with Nicola 

Stansbie and two Complainant’s from The Regis – . We 
discussed where we are at now and the proposed service of the Abatement Notice and the 
Licence Review Application. 

 
11.04.22 Sharan Dadwal received email from James Jewry (Acoustic Consultant) on behalf of Gareth 

Collins at The Regis with a few queries. Attempted to obtain confidential information. 
 
19.04.22 Sharan Dadwal replied to James Jewry’s email, answering the questions raised in his email. 

(see Appendix 12) 
20.04.22 Sharan Dadwal served the Abatement Notice with a covering letter to Gareth Collins at The 

Regis, 152 Reddal Hill Rd, Cradley Heath B64 5JJ. One was served to Gareth Collins 
personally and one on the Company Secretary at Regis Events Ltd. Also accompanying me 
were: Paul Franks, Andy Price and Police Officers – Andrew Cleaver & Claire Van Luinen. 

(see Appendix 13) 
26.04.22 Email sent to Sharan Dadwal from Gareth Collins (The Regis) asking how he can appeal the 

Abatement Notice. Sharan Dadwal replied – directing Gareth to the guidance attached to 
the Notice and advising him to seek legal advice. 

(see Appendix 14) 
26.04.22 Email sent to Sharan Dadwal from Gareth Collins (The Regis) advising that they have decided 

to take drastic steps to take down their music system from 18 speaker boxes to 6 speaker 
boxes. 

(see Appendix 15) 
11.05.22 Licence Review Application sent to License Department. Also served by hand to License 

Holder of The Regis, Gareth Collins with cover letter with an explanation (also present were 
Paul Franks and Andy Price – although they did not get involved in the conversation as they 
work in the Licensing Dept. Also sent to all relevant Responsible Authorities on same day. 

  (Appendix 17) 
 

20.05.22 Shane Middleton visited the area of The Regis (10pm – 10.15pm) – parked opposite The 
Regis.  

(Appendix 18) 
27.05.22 Sharan Dadwal and Surveen Chahal visited the area of The Regis and parked outside on 

Highland Road (Sharan Dadwal) and Hickman’s Avenue (Surveen Chahal) to make 
observations regarding the noise complaints from The Regis. 

(Appendix 18) 
28.05.22 Sharan Dadwal and Surveen Chahal visited the area of The Regis and parked outside on 

Highland Road (Sharan Dadwal) and Hickman’s Avenue (Surveen Chahal) to make 
observations regarding the noise complaints from The Regis. 

Page 36



 (Appendix 18) 
31.05.22 Helen Brimelow visited a complainant’s home at  to install 

noise monitoring equipment. 
 
03.06.22 Shane Middleton visited the area of The Regis on Friday 3 June 2022 (23.10- 23. 55 pm) and 

parked outside The Regis.  
(Appendix 18) 

04.06.22 Surveen Chahal visited the area of The Regis and parked outside to make observations 
regarding the noise complaints from The Regis. 

(Appendix 18) 
06.06.22 Helen Brimelow visited a complainant’s home at  to collect 

the noise monitoring equipment. 
 
10.06.22 Shane Middleton and Helen Brimelow are to undertake further monitoring outside The 

Regis tonight. 
 
 
Complainants 
 

1. (SR: 207704) 
21.01.22 Complaint received 
25.01.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
28.01.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to update him following phone conversation with 

Mr Collins (from 27.01.22) 
07.02.22 Phone call from C with further noise complaints 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion (not returned) 
10.02.22 Phone call from C with further noise complaints 
 

2. (SR: 207764)  
24.01.22 Complaint received 
25.01.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
28.01.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to update him following phone conversation with 

Mr Collins (from 27.01.22) 
31.01.22 Phone call from C with further noise complaints 
04.02.22 Phone call from C with further noise complaints 
07.02.22 Phone call from C with further noise complaints and said he had to contact 

the police over the weekend due to guests leaving The Regis at closing time – 
anti-social behaviour 

08.02.22 Phone call from C with further noise complaints 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion 
15.02.22 Phone call from C to discuss noise issues from The Regis 
23.02.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
24.02.22 Message from C asking for any updates 
10.03.22 Log of anti-social behaviour from The Regis guests emailed to Sharan Dadwal 

Page 37



14.03.22 Further Log of anti-social behaviour from The Regis guests emailed to Sharan 
Dadwal 

14.03.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
15.03.22 Phone call from C asking for update and discussing issues further 
24.03.22 Message from C asking when the Abatement Notice will be served 
27.03.22 Message from C complaining about the noise issues this weekend  
04.04.22 Message sent to Sharan Dadwal about noise disturbance from weekend 
19.04.22 Noise monitoring form sent through to Sharan Dadwal 
25.04.22 Noise monitoring form sent through to Sharan Dadwal 
02.05.22 Noise monitoring form sent through to Sharan Dadwal 
09.05.22 Noise monitoring forms sent through to Sharan Dadwal from wkend 6/7/8 

May 2022 
09.05.22 Video footage sent through of Regis 
17.05.22 Noise monitoring forms sent through to Sharan Dadwal  
20.05.22 Further complaint by complainant regarding noise from The Regis 
 

3. (SR: 207782) 
24.01.22 Complaint received 
25.01.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
26.01.22 C emailed through to Sharan Dadwal images of sound system, future events 

and video footage of event complained about 
28.01.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to update him following phone conversation with 

Mr Collins (from 27.01.22) 
31.01.22 C phoned Sharan Dadwal to complain about anti-social behaviour of Regis 

guests and inconsiderate parking 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion 
16.02.22 Visited C’s home to install NME with Helen Brimelow 
19.02.22 C sent footage to Sharan Dadwal of ASB from The Regis guests 
08.03.22 Visited C’s home to collect NME with Helen Brimelow 
12.03.22 Image sent to Sharan Dadwal showing inconsiderate care parking 
14.03.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
19.03.22 Image sent to Sharan Dadwal of future events at The Regis 
21.03.22 Image sent to Sharan Dadwal showing advertisement of sporting match event 
28.03.22 Image sent to Sharan Dadwal showing event for 25.06.22 from 1pm-1am 
28.03.22 Image sent to Sharan Dadwal showing further parking issues 
04.04.22 Footage sent to Sharan Dadwal showing disturbances from 02/03 April 2022 
03.05.22 Footage sent to Sharan Dadwal of weekend 30 April 2022/01 May 2022 – 

loud music and parking issues 
26.05.22 Footage sent to Sharan Dadwal showing loud music from The Regis 
30.05.22  Footage sent to Sharan Dadwal showing loud music from The Regis 
 

4. (SR: 208142) 
31.01.22 Complaint received 
01.02.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 

Page 38



07.02.22 C phoned Sharan Dadwal to complain about the noise from The Regis 
09.02.22 C phoned Sharan Dadwal to discuss noise issue from The Regis 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion 
11.02.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
23.02.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
25.02.22 C phoned Sharan Dadwal to complain about noise and anti-social behaviour 
28.02.22 C phoned Sharan Dadwal to complain about noise and anti-social behaviour 

of Regis guests  
01.03.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
07.03.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
14.03.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
26.04.22 Noise monitoring form sent through to Sharan Dadwal 
26.05.22 Email sent to other Council members (Sharan Dadwal CC’d) from complainant 

asking why immediate action has not been taken against breaches of 
Abatement Notice 

26.05.22 Completed noise monitoring forms emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
06.06.22 Email sent from Shane Middleton to Gareth Collins (license holder at The 

Regis warning him about continued breaches against Abatement Notice 
07.06.22 Completed noise monitoring forms emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
 

5. (SR: 208250) 
01.02.22 Complaint received 
02.02.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion 
23.02.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
11.03.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
 

6. (SR: 208388)  (Complaint made via Cllr) 
03.02.22 Complaint received 
10.02.22 Sharan Dadwal emailed Cllr response to Shane (no Constituent response as C 

was anonymous) 
 

7. (SR: 208419) (Complaint made via Cllr) 
03.02.22 Complaint received 
04.02.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion 
10.02.22 Sharan Dadwal emailed Cllr and Constituent response to Shane 
28.02.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
07.04.22 Email from C to Sharan Dadwal asking for update  
03.05.22 Email from C to Sharan Dadwal complaining about weekend 30 April 2022 – 

noise and Caribbean Kitchen vehicle blocked his driveway – image provided. 
 

8. (SR: 208436) (Complaint made via Cllr) 
03.02.22 Complaint received 

Page 39



04.02.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion 
10.02.22 Sharan Dadwal emailed Cllr and Constituent response to Shane 
28.02.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
07.04.22 Email from C to Sharan Dadwal asking for update 
03.05.22 Email from C to Sharan Dadwal complaining about weekend 30 April 2022 – 

noise and Caribbean Kitchen vehicle blocked his driveway – image provided. 
 

9. (SR: 208504) 
04.02.22 Complaint received 
09.02.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
09.02.22 Noise monitoring forms sent to C for completion 
23.02.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
14.03.22 C emailed Sharan Dadwal footage of ASB from alleged The Regis guests 
14.03.22 Completed noise monitoring form emailed through to Sharan Dadwal 
 
 

10. (SR: 210742) 
16.03.22 Complaint received 
18.03.22 Sharan Dadwal phoned C to obtain further information 
  (C said he did not want to get involved in anything further) 

Page 40



                       

Photos taken by Shane Middleton outside The Regis – parked on Highland Road 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

20 May 2022 (22:00h)             03 June 2022                    

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           03 June 2022               03 June 2022 

 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SHARAN DADWAL (Environmental Health Officer) 

Sat 19 February 2022 

Visited the vicinity in the evening with EHO, Surveen Chahal. I parked up outside 2a Highland Road - 
vehicle doors and windows were shut. 21:56 hours - music clearly audible - I could hear the voice of the 
DJ but could not make out the words. Could hear the beats. Time is 22:13 hours - type of music now 
changed - quicker beats and bass is more noticeable and vibration can be felt as I am sitting in my 
vehicle. Pace of music and type of music seems to be changing every 6-7 minutes, including beats and 
bass. Leaving location at 22:45 hours. 

Sat 26 February 2022 

Visited the vicinity in the evening with EHO, Surveen Chahal. I parked up outside 2a Highland Road - 
vehicle doors and windows were shut. Time was 21:44 and upon arrival it was fairly quiet. There were 
only few vehicles parked on nearby roads. Some guests to premises gathered outside main entrance 
talking and smoking. Music emanating from premises was just about audible and lighting inside was 
just visible - unlike last week when it was brighter inside. Police van arrived and parked outside 
premises main entrance at 22:05 - about 6-7 officers entered premises and then left premises at 22:15. 
22:16 - bass is now audible and has gradually quickened pace. A few guests now arriving. Leaving site 
at 22:45. 

Fri 27 May 2022 

Attended with Surveen Chahal - outside The Regis. Arrived at 22.27h and parked up in my vehicle with 
windows and doors closed. Man's voice audible, on the microphone intermittently coming from inside 
of building. 22.54h music and bass audible, vibration felt. Police drove past at 23.13h. Music still 
continuing at 23.15 - audible. Leaving at 23.30. In my opinion, this does amount to a Statutory Noise 
Nuisance. 

Sat 28 May 2022 

Visited the area with EHO Surveen Chahal and parked up outside The Regis - outside number 2 
Highland Rd. Parked up in my vehicle with all windows and doors closed. Could clearly hear the music 
with bass and feel the vibration as soon as I arrived. Gareth Collins was outside with a few other 
people on my arrival and he looked towards my vehicle and I think he may have recognised me - he 
was aware that we were going to be monitoring. Music was not turned down as a result. Witnessed 
a club guest urinating behind his vehicle - on the road - and then entering his vehicle and driving to 
the entrance of The Regis, where he parked up. 23.10 Surveen and I left the vicinity as music had 
quietened down slightly as we wanted to see if it would get louder once we were gone. We returned 
10 minutes later and music had increased with bass and vibration could be felt. Left at midnight. In 
my opinion, this does amount to a Statutory Noise Nuisance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



SURVEEN CHAHAL (Environmental Health Officer) 

Sat 19 February 2022 

Visited the vicinity in the evening with EHO, Sharan Dadwal. Arrived at 9.45pm and parked up across 
the road from 2 Hickman’s Avenue – and my vehicle doors and windows were shut. The music and 
bass were clearly audible but not too loud. Lots of people outside the main entrance smoking. 
10.12pm – bass increased, hard and continuous drumming noise – for 2-3 minutes. Changed to loud 
recorded music, audible in my car. Bass picked up – 10.19pm, 3-4 taxis pulled up – very noisy. 
Doorman on site. Notable tunes, vibration felt. 

Sat 26 February 2022 

Visited the vicinity in the evening with EHO, Sharan Dadwal. Much quieter than my visit last Saturday 
but can still hear bass. A few people outside. 10.05pm – 10.15pm police arrived, and seven officers 
went inside the building. Police left after 30 minutes. 

Fri 27 May 2022/Sat 28 May 2022 

Visited the vicinity with EHO, Sharan Dadwal. Bass, music and vocals audible. 

Sat 04 June 2022 

Visited the vicinity in the evening. This is the quietest it has been, but I could hear a low-level bass. 
Staff were smoking at the side of the building for approximately 5 minutes and talking loudly which 
was audible but then went in. I was monitoring for approximately 1hr 10mins and throughout my 
stay, the music and bass were definitely audible and continuous. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 44



SHANE MIDDLETON (Senior Environmental Health Officer) 

Visited Friday 3 June 2022 (23.10 - 23.55pm) outside The Regis. 
Monitoring from car, front windows open.  
Bass music audible reverberating through building fabric and windows, audible throughout visit. No 
vocals audible. 
Also, audible traffic noise, visiting patrons, adjacent high street, passing emergency vehicles /sirens 
on two occasions.  
During time monitoring, reduction in traffic levels, bass noise more discernible.  
In the opinion of the Officer in contravention of the abatement notice EPA 90, to determine noise 
levels from Noise Monitoring Equipment installed over weekend at residential property  
 
Location 1   2310-23.32 

 

Location - 23.32-23.55pm outside Regis 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45



Visited Friday 20/05 2022 Regis (10.00pm to 10.15 pm)  

Parked opposite The Regis     

Music faintly audible from premises, patrons arriving, cars parking, general traffic noise from 
adjacent main road 

 

Page 46



P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Licence number – 05/008555/LAPREM 

Points Raised Actions Taken Additional actions to take Appendix 

Noise Nuisance   

“Since serving the Notice, 
further complaints and video 
footage, revealing noise 
nuisance from The Regis 
and parking issues, have 
been received by our 
Department from nearby 
residents. Therefore, these 
allegations of 
contraventions of the noise 
abatement notice are 
currently being investigated 
by Officers to determine 
appropriate enforcement 
action.” 
 

In relation to the issues surrounding ‘noise nuisance’ Gareth and the sound 
engineer has since reduced the sound system by nearly 70% - by reducing the 
amount of speakers from  
to  
 
In relation to this Gareth has also asked what is an appropriate DB threshold for 
the area the Regis situates to ensure that this is tracked and the noise levels do not 
go above. 
 
Upon discussions with sound professionals and querying with the council around 
the appropriate sound levels it has been advised that 70 db is appropriate. 
 
Within the information provided by Sharan, it states the DB recorded on 19.02.22 
was that of 60db – we have been advised that this is the same db as a conversation 
between a group of people. Also both examples show db recordings before 
11.30pm – I would like to see what is recorded for after 11pm so we have some 
clarity, as the sound team are under strict instructions to reduce the levels of noise 
after 11pm. 
 
In relation to developing good relationships with the surrounding properties, 
Gareth and his team along with Claire have introduced themselves to the occupiers 
of the houses in close proximity and asked them to inform them if the noise is too 
loud or there are any issues as they want the persons to feel comfortable in doing 
so. A letter has also gone out to the close properties with a contact number on to 
contact if they feel the noise levels are too high and that the team will be more 
than happy to reduce noise. 
 
The team have also in the process of having sound proofing drapes fitted to the 
windows to reduce the sound. 

We are still awaiting 
confirmation as to what is 
the expected and 
appropriate levels of DB 
within the area to ensure 
the monitors within the 
sound system does not 
exceed this DB. 

Appendix 1 – letter to 
properties 
 
Appendix 2 – 
additional letters to 
properties 

P
age 49



Licence number – 05/008555/LAPREM 

Parking issues 

Issues surrounding parking  All staff have been directed to be vigilant in directing patrons to ensure they are 
parking respectfully. 
There have been a number of posters displayed round the venue reminding 
patrons to ensure they are parked respectfully. 
Gareth and Claire have also published a video on their social media explaining to 
patrons where to park upon visiting and reminding them the importance of 
ensuring they are parking correctly. 
 
Claire has been in touch with Sandwell Council on numerous occasions to request 
the use of the large carpark opposite the venue which has been un used for a 
number of years.  

Access to additional 
parking 

Appendix 3 – posters 
 
Appendix 4 – social 
media post 
 
Appendix 5 – emails 
between Sandwell 
council and Claire 
Shayle  

Anti Social Behaviour  

There have been some 
complaints of anti social 
behaviour  

Unfortunately with all venues there will never be a consistent way to reduce and 
deterrent anti social behaviour.  
The Regis can control the happenings within the venue and will continue to do 
their upmost to support and reduce the risk of anti social behaviour but 
unfortunately they do not have the control of peoples actions. 
 
During every event the Regis uses security to ensure the premises and the patrons 
are safe. 
They are thorough and alert to any issues that may arise. 
 
Upon advice from 3rd parties the Regis have implemented an incident book which 
logs any incidents that occur on the premises. 
 
There have been posters displayed surrounding the venue encouraging patrons 
who are leaving the premises to be respectful to the neighbours. 
 
A social media post was also published on the Regis social media pages 
encouraging patrons to be respectful when leaving the venue otherwise if they 
were noted to be carrying out ‘anti social behaviour’ they will be banned from 

 Appendix 6 – poster 
 
Appendix 7 – Social 
media post  

P
age 50



Licence number – 05/008555/LAPREM 

attending any future events at the Regis. 

Gareth and his team unfortunately feel as though they have been targeted and exposed to prejudice due to the nature of the venues roots. 
Yes the Regis serves Caribbean food and hosts Drum and Bass nights but the Regis offers a range of diverse events that suit all age, recently they have hosted a children’s 
event, are thriving with private bookings for parties and wakes for the older generation who are overwhelmed that the Regis a venue they frequented in their younger days is 
open. 
There are upcoming mind body and zen events along with fitness events to support people’s health and wellbeing which is a must. They are an advocate for mental health and 
are putting on drop-in clinics for people experiencing depression to show support. 
With the right guidance and support The Regis will continue to grow. 
The Regis Team has continuously attempted to work with the neighbours and develop a relationship with them which has been rejected as someone stated “ they don’t want 
that kind round here” which we can only take on board as discriminative behaviour but this has not disheartened the team they have contiously tried to make bonds 
regardless. 

 

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102


	Agenda
	3 Application to Review a Premises Licence, The Regis, 152 Reddal Hill Road, Cradley Heath, B64 5JJ
	Appendix 1 - Regis License Review Application
	Appendix 2 - Premises Licence
	Appendix 3 – Location Plan
	Appendix 4 - EH Team Findings
	Appendix 4.1 - Appendix 16
	Appendix 4.2 - Appendix 18
	Appendix 4.3 - MARKED PLAN
	Appendix 5 - Document from Applicant
	Appendix 6 - Representations Redacted_Redacted




